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RGS FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Agenda materials may be viewed on the Agency’s web site or by contacting the Executive Director prior to the meeting. 

 
REGULAR MEETING February 27, 2014 
Via Teleconference 1:20 p.m. 
 
 

Association of Bay Area Governments, Finance Director’s Office, 101 8th St., First Floor, Oakland, CA  94607  
Walnut Creek City Hall, City Manager’s Office, 1666 North Main Street, Walnut Creek, CA  94596 
Larkspur City Hall, City Manager’s Office, 400 Magnolia Avenue, Larkspur, CA  94939  
 
 
Dublin Civic Center, City Manager’s Office, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA  94568 
SamTrans, Executive Conference Room, Third Floor, 1250 San Carlos Avenue, San Carlos, CA  94070 
San Rafael City Hall, City Manager’s Office, 1400 Fifth Avenue, San Rafael, CA  94901 
Yountville Town Hall, Town Manager’s Office, 6550 Yount Street, Yountville, CA  94599 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Roll Call 
 

2. CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF AGENDA 
 

3. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
Consent agenda items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless members of the Executive Committee, staff or public request specific items to 
be removed for separate action. 
A. Approval of December 5, 2013 Minutes Action 

 
4. TREASURER’S REPORT  

A. Approval of FY13 Audited Financial Statements Action 
B. Approve Resolution RGSBOD2014-01 to Amend LAIF Authorized Persons List Action 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS - None 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS - None 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Each speaker is limited to two minutes.  If you are addressing the Executive Committee (EC) on a non-agenda 
item, the EC may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as allowed by the Brown Act 
(Government Code Section 54954.2).  However, the EC's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or 
have a matter placed on a future EC agenda for a more comprehensive action or report. 
 

8. ADJOURN   
 

The next Regular Meeting will take place on May 15, 2014 at 1:00 p.m. in Yountville. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Richard Averett 

at (650) 587-7301. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable Agency to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 
 



 

 

Draft Action Minutes 
 

REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 

The Finance Committee of the Regional Government Services Authority held a regular meeting 
on December 5, 2013 at San Rafael City Hall, 1400 Fifth Street, San Rafael, CA  94901.  The 
meeting was called to order at 2:54 p.m. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Members Present: Dan Schwarz, Member 
 Ken Nordhoff, Member, meeting facilitator 
Members Absent: Herb Pike, Chair 
Other Attendees:  Nancy Mackle, Board Member 
 Julie Carter, Alternate Board Member 
 Richard Averett, Executive Director 
 Jennifer Bower, Director of HR 
 Glenn Lazof, Deputy Chief Financial Officer 

 
2. CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF AGENDA - None 

 
3. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of August 22, 2013 Minutes 
Action: Moved and seconded (Schwarz/Nordhoff) and carried unanimously to approve 
consent agenda.  

 
4. TREASURER’S REPORT 

A. 2013 Preliminary Financial Reports 
Information:  Deputy Chief Financial Officer Lazof summarized the report, noting that 
updated preliminary combined net equity is only $18,000 less than the August projection.  
He also stated that audited FY2013 financial statements are expected to be ready in 
January, will be distributed when ready, and agendized for approval at the February 
meetings.  The primary reason for the delay in finalizing was additional reconciliations 
required to clear balance sheet items, some from prior fiscal years. 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS - None 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Select Replacement Vice-Chair 
Action: Member Nordhoff offered to serve as Vice-Chair to replace retiring Vice-Chair 
Pattillo.  There being no other nominations, the nominations were closed and Member 
Nordhoff was unanimously selected as Finance Committee Vice-Chair. 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT - None 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The meeting adjourned at 3:06 p.m.  The next regular meeting is scheduled 

for February 27, 2014 at 1:00 p.m. in Walnut Creek. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL AND REGIONAL GOVERNMENT 
SERVICES AUTHORITIES 

Providing Solutions to California Public Agencies 
 

 
P.O. Box 1350     ·     Carmel Valley, CA93924     ·     650.587.7300 

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE FC Meeting:  02-27-13 
FROM: Glenn Lazof, Deputy Chief Financial Officer Item:  4A 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF AUDIT REPORTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Review and approve the independent audit reports for fiscal year 2013. 
 
BACKGROUND 
There are four milestones represented in this audit year.   After a thorough RFP process conducted over a 
five month period, the audit firm of James Marta and Company, CPA was retained to complete the 
independent audits for fiscal years (FY) 2013, 2014, and 2015.   This audit period is also significant in 
that from July 2006 through December2012, the Authorities’ accounting services were performed by an 
outside firm.  Internalstaff now perform these services.   Also beginning in January 2013, the payroll 
function was brought in-house and payroll processerswere changed - from ADP to APS.   
 
The last item milestone is the creation and first full year of operation of an insurance authority to service 
RGS and LGS.  This is the first Annual Financial Statement for the Municipal Services Authority.  It 
should be noted that contributions to the MSA represent a substantial portion of change in Net Assets 
reported for RGS and LGS. 
 
Copies of the June 30, 2013audited financial statementsfor all three JPAs, along with copies of the June 
30, 2013 audit reports, Management Letters and Board Communications and additional detail on the 
responses to auditor’s comments have been included in the Finance Committee meeting packet. Audited 
financial statements are also posted to the JPA web site. 
 
AUDIT RESULTS 
LGS, RGS and MSA audit results are summarized below, with more information and analysis in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis section of each audit report.  The results reflect the internal 
investment made to enhancecapacity of the JPAs during FY2013, the termination of a major client, and 
the impact of retrospective adjustments due to our former liability carrier.  The positive net position of the 
JPAs will permit a continued ability to provide quality services to our clients and employees. 
 
Working with our auditors, we have identified the three most significant adjustments for fiscal year 2013. 

1. CJPIA liability deposits adjusted to reflect retrospective reports for General Liability and Workers 
Compensation.  LGS expenditures increased by $154,720, RGS by $303,213. 

2. Municipal Services Authority expenses adjusted $197,042 for Claims Incurred But Not Reported 
(IBNR), an industry standard estimate of potential liability for claims that may have occurred in 
during FY2013 but are not yet reported.  

3. OPEB Liability expenditures adjusted decrease in expenditures for LGS $16,980 and $64,049 for 
RGS to reflect the results of arecently completed Alternative Method Methodology study. 

 



The Audit Reports folder in the Finance Committee agenda packet also contains descriptions of each of 
the Auditors Adjusting Journals.    
 
Accrued leave liabilities for FY 2013 decreased RGS expenditures by $1,003 and LGS expenditures by 
$22,993.  
 
Audit Findings: 
There was a finding in both RGS and LGS relating to the need to reconcile the balance sheet monthly.   
Staff concurred with the finding and the recommended corrective action.   A complete response is 
included in the Management Letters. 
 
RGS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Net cash from operating activities decreased by $1,359,169 in FY 2013 from FY2012 with 
$300,000 in additional contributions to MSA claims reserve. 

• Revenues from client reimbursements for services provided decreased $2,925,405 in FY2013 from 
the FY2012. 

• Total operating expenditures decreased$1,566,236 in FY2013 from FY2012 
• Net Assets at the end of the fiscal year are $520,858 in FY2013 and were $842,519 in FY 2012, 

decreasing $321,661 over the fiscal year. 
 

LGS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
• Net cash from operating activities decreased by $1,070,035 in FY 2013 from FY2012, with 

$600,000 in additional contributions to MSA claims reserve. 
• Revenues from client reimbursements for services provided decreased $2,074,233 in FY2013 from 

the FY2012. 
• Total operating expenditures decreased $1,070,035 in FY2013 from FY2012  
• Net Assets at the end of the fiscal year are $748,812 in FY2013 and were $1,521,534 in FY 2012, 

decreasing $772,722 over the fiscal year. 
 
MSA FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Net cash from operating activities were $819,523 for FY 2013. 
• Member contributions were $1,235,000. 
• Total operating expenditures were $415,477. 
• FY 2013 was the first full year of MSA operations. 
• Net Assets at the end of the MSA’s first year are $819,523. 

 
Combined net assets for all three agencies decreased $274,860 from $2,364,053 to $2,089,193. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
Board of Directors 
Regional Government Services Authority  
Carmel Valley, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying Statement of Net Position of Regional Government Services 
Authority (the “Authority") as of June 30, 2013 and the related Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position and Cash Flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial 
statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic 
financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

http://www.jpmcpa.com
mailto:dbecker@jpmcpa.com
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Regional Government Services Authority as of June 30, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as systems prescribed 
by the State Controller’s Office and state regulators governing special districts. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The financial statements of Regional Government Services Authority as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2012 were audited by other auditors. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
financial statements in their report dated February 6, 2013. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 – 7 and Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment 
Benefits on page 22 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 
2014 on our consideration of Regional Government Services Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Regional 
Government Services Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 21, 2014
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The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Regional Government Services 
Authority (the “Authority” or “RGS”) provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for the 
fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2013.  Please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial 
statements, which follow this section.   
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority’s net position decreased $321,661 (38%) 
from the prior fiscal year.  This is primarily due to the four factors noted below. 

• The Authority terminated its services agreement with Gold Coast Health Plan in early FY2013, 
resulting in decreases in revenue and expenditures compared to the prior fiscal year. 

• The Authority joined the Municipal Services Authority (MSA) insurance pool and contributed an 
additional $300,000 mid-year to MSA reserves for claims expenses.  The Authority also reversed 
a prior year liability for a claim against the Authority.  To offset this reversal and to plan for 
future claims expenses, the Authority contributed the additional funding to MSA referred above. 

• At mid-year, the Authority brought financial and payroll services in-house after contracting with 
a CPA consulting firm for these services for the last 6.5 years.  While eventually resulting in 
reduced operating costs and increased control over administrative operations, the transition 
required one-time overlapping expenditures for contract monitoring, staffing, training, set-up and 
reconciliation. 

• Due to restructuring and long term fiscal discipline, the Regional Government Services Authority 
is in a strong financial position. The Authority is not dependent on any one or several major 
clients, but is growing its client base and service offerings.  While RGS’s net position decreased 
this fiscal year and is budgeted to decrease slightly in FY2014, the Authority’s administrative 
personnel, technical infrastructure, internal processes and outreach activities should result in 
positive income growth within the next 12 months.   

• The Authority has designated a portion ($211,959) of the unrestricted net position for post-
employment medical benefits and will convert to pay-as-you-go Health Retirement Accounts in 
the 2014 fiscal year.  It is anticipated that moneys already set aside for OPEB liability will be 
sufficient to fund prior service contributions.  

 
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority completed a transition of payroll and 
financial services from external consultant provision to RGS staff services, and payroll 
processing from ADP to Automatic Payroll Systems, Inc. (APS).  The consultant contract 
assigned two full-time staff to perform RGS services and RGS assigned one Sr. Analyst to 
troubleshoot billing and payroll problems.  RGS now staffs these services with a part-time Sr. 
Analyst and Finance Technician and two part-time Payroll Technicians.  The investment results 
in lower operating costs, improved reporting and controls, and increased capacity to take on 
additional client work and new client services.   

• As a result of this successful transition, in FY2014 the Authority will be reviewing its remaining 
technology needs, including updating its website, cost model, and investigating the need for 
customer relations management software to help internal communications regarding client 
contacts, contracts, billing information and other efficiencies. 
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USE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO ANALYZE THE AUTHORITY’S CONDITION 
 
Financial statements can be used to answer the question, “Is an agency better off or worse off as a result 
of this year’s activities?”  The financial statements report information about the Authority’s activities in a 
way that helps answer this question.  The statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, 
which means that all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of 
when cash is received or paid.  An explanation of each of the statements and the information they report 
follows. 
 
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
The Statement of Net Position details the Authority’s assets, liabilities and the difference between them, 
known as net position, at the end of the fiscal years, June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012.  The level of net 
position is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health.  Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Authority’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
Other factors, such as shifting (i.e. contributing) assets and liabilities to the new insurance JPA, 
Municipal Services Authority, must also be considered to assess the overall health of the Authority.   
 
THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information which shows 
how the Authority’s net position changed during the fiscal year.  The statement measures the success of 
the Authority’s operations during the year and determines whether the Authority has recovered its costs 
through user fees, its only revenue source other than de minimus interest earnings.     
 
THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the Authority’s cash receipts and 
disbursements during the fiscal years.  Cash activity is grouped in the following two categories: 
operations and investing.  These statements differ from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position, because they only account for transactions that result in cash receipts or 
disbursements.  For example, the amount shown as receipts from customers on the first line of the 
statements represents cash received during the fiscal year, rather than revenue earned.    
 
THE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Notes to Financial Statements provide a description of accounting policies used to prepare the 
financial statements and present material disclosures required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America that are not otherwise present in the financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
NET POSITION 
The Authority’s net position at June 30, 2013 totaled $520,858 compared with $842,519 at June 30, 
2012.  The decrease represents decreased cash and investments due to decreased client revenues, as noted 
above.  A summary of the Authority’s asset, liability and net position balances at the end of the current 
and prior fiscal years appears on the following chart. 
 

Percent
2011 2012 2013 Change Change

Current Assets 1,606,151$    2,428,085$    1,568,401$    (859,684)$     -35.4%

Current Liabilities 731,540        774,626        294,316        (480,310)       -62.0%
Non-Current Liabilities 405,629        810,940        753,227        (57,713)        -7.1%

Total Liabilities 1,137,169     1,585,566     1,047,543     (538,023)       -33.9%

Net Position
Unrestricted 468,982$      842,519$      520,858$      (321,661)$     -38.2%

 
 

The June 30, 2013 cash and cash equivalents balance decreased $749,597 from the balance at the end of 
the prior year.  The Authority invests surplus cash in the Local Agency Investment Fund, a governmental 
investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer, and also in the Investment Trust 
of California (CalTRUST), a public joint powers authority formed to pool and invest the funds of public 
agencies. 

   
The unrestricted portion of net position has been designated by the Board of Directors based on potential 
contingencies and policy-based priorities.  In prior years, the Authority has designated a portion of 
unrestricted net position and has collected $211,959 through June 30, 2013, from its clients for post-
employment medical benefits for eligible employees.  This amount is now shown as a Non-Current 
Liability and thus not included in the Unrestricted Net Position.   Additional information on the 
designation of unrestricted net position can be found in the notes to the financial statements.   
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REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
The Authority reported a decrease in net position of $321,661 for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Net 
operating revenues were significantly less than the prior year, due to the termination of services to a large 
client agency early in the fiscal year.  This service agreement was originally scheduled to end after two 
years, but was extended several months at the request of the client to aid in their transition. 
 
Operating expenses also decreased significantly from the prior fiscal year for the same reason.  This 
category includes all costs related to payroll and employee benefits, as well as general and administrative 
expenses, including an additional $300,000 contribution to MSA claims reserves.  The largest single line 
item decrease ($1,889,254) represents personnel expenses, most of which was attributable to the 
aforementioned client termination.   
 
The following table summarizes the Authority’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position for the current and prior fiscal years: 

 
Percent

2011 2012 2013 Change Change

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 5,946,555$    8,700,588$    5,775,183$    (2,925,405)$  -33.6%

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 5,028,321     7,388,026     5,498,772     (1,889,254)    -25.6%
Professional services 209,138        263,052        217,714        (45,338)        -17.2%
Administration 527,483        404,615        772,971        368,356        91.0%

Total Operating Expenses 5,764,942     8,055,693     6,489,457     (1,566,236)    -19.4%

Operating Income (Loss) 181,613        644,895        (714,274)       (1,359,169)    -210.8%

Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment income -                  5,175           5,963           788              15.2%

Special item (Note 9) -                  (386,650)       386,650        773,300        -200.0%

Change in net position 181,613        263,420        (321,661)       (585,081)       -222.1%

Beginning Net Position 287,369        579,099        842,519        263,420        45.5%

Ending Net Position 468,982$      842,519$      520,858$      (321,661)$     -38.2%
 

 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
At June 30, 2013, the Authority had no capital assets, no depreciation expenses and no immediate plans 
to acquire capital assets in the future. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND BUDGET 
 
The Authority is a unique government agency, in that it is 100% fee-for-service driven AND that it 
provides general and administrative services to local and regional government agencies and their non-
profit partners.  How we can be of value to local governments varies from agency to agency, but in 
general there are four lines of business:  on-going staffing and employment services; interim staffing to 
fill personnel gaps or to provide time to consider alternative service model options; consulting expertise; 
and administrative services (such as accounts payable, payroll, training, etc.).  Agencies use our services 
when they determine it is in their best to do so.  Because financial pressures on local governments are 
cyclical but ever increasing, the demand for RGS services is expected to vary but to generally increase 
over time as long as those services are relevant to the needs and cost effective for the clients. 
 
The Authority’s governing body – its Board of Directors and committees – guide and ensure that the 
Authority stays current with its mission to serve local agencies in a fiscally sustainable manner.  Our 
growth over the last 12 years, from formation to now over 40 active clients and over 60 employees, from 
borrowing start-up funds to having no debt and over half a million dollars (not including insurance 
reserves in MSA) in net equity, are testament to the vision and practicality of that guidance.  There have 
been and will be ‘bumps’ along the way that require adjustments and investments in the Authority’s plans 
and capacity.  Fiscal year 2013 was a year of adjustments and investments.  RGS adjusted to a major 
client leaving by focusing on growing the number of agencies it serves.  RGS invested in its capacity to 
improve and expand services by hiring the expertise to meet its own payroll and financial services, which 
could then be made available to other public agencies.  It is continuing that investment into the 2014 
fiscal year by expanding and improving its HR and Financial Services offerings to local agencies and 
increasing its outreach to agencies, so more cities, special districts and joint powers authorities know 
who we are and what we do.  
 
The 2013-2014 budget reflects the loss of this major client and the investment in capacity.  A small 
deficit is anticipated as the Authority retools itself for these initiatives.  By the end of the fiscal year, if 
not before, it is expected that monthly financial performance will again be positive.  Thereafter, the 
Authority’s net position should resume its positive growth, so the Agency can meet future challenges and 
investment opportunities.   
 
The Regional Government Services Authority is constantly striving to be a valuable partner to the local 
government community, through innovation and excellent customer service.  With the continued 
contributions from staff, Directors, and client agencies, it will remain a valuable public asset long into 
the future. Planning that is being accomplished through the governing body will guide the Authority as it 
strives to meet its strategic objectives and accomplish its mission: 

 
Regional Government Services is a California joint powers authority that provides high-quality staffing, 
consulting and administrative services to meet local government needs. 
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2013 2012
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 915,373$          1,664,970$       
Accounts receivable 596,072            723,948            
Prepaid expenses 56,956              36,490             
CJPIA deposits -                      2,677               

Total Assets 1,568,401         2,428,085         

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 170,295            330,177            
Unearned revenue 66,841              387,000            
Due to other governments -                      -                      
Compensated absences - current 57,180              57,449             

 Total Current Liabilities 294,316            774,626            

Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated absences - non-current 171,542            172,346            
CJPIA assessments 359,476            445,590            
Unemployment claims payable 10,250              -                      
OPEB liability 211,959            193,004            

Total Liabilities 1,047,543         1,585,566         

NET POSITION

Net Position
Unrestricted 520,858$          842,519$          
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2013 2012

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 5,775,183$        8,700,588$        

Total Operating Revenues 5,775,183         8,700,588         

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 5,498,772         7,388,026         
Professional services 217,714            263,052            
Administration 772,971            404,615            

Total Operating Expenses 6,489,457         8,055,693         

Operating Income (Loss) (714,274)           644,895            

Non-Operating Revenues:
Investment income 5,963               5,175               

Special item (Note 9) 386,650            (386,650)           

Change in net position (321,661)           263,420            

Beginning Net Position 842,519            579,099            

Ending Net Position 520,858$          842,519$          
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2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received for services 5,577,307$    9,463,163$    
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (857,570)       (697,410)       
Cash paid to employees for services (5,480,890)    (7,198,703)    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (761,153)       1,567,050     

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income received 11,556          5,175           

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (749,597)       1,572,225     

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,664,970     92,745          

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 915,373$      1,664,970$    

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (714,274)$     644,895$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

Special item 386,650$      (386,650)$     
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable 122,283        762,850        
Prepaid expenses (20,466)        (14,162)        
CJPIA deposits 2,677           1,603           

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (159,882)       44,310          
Unearned revenue (320,159)       305,600        
Due to other governments -                  (305,875)       
Compensated absences (1,073)          106,319        
CJPIA assessments (86,114)        -                  
Claims payable 10,250          325,156        
OPEB liability 18,955          83,004          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (761,153)$     1,567,050$    

Supplemental Information: Noncash investing activities
Unrealized losses 5,593$          -$                
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2013 2012
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 2,493,412$    2,012,120$    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Due to other governments 2,493,412$    2,012,120$    
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The Regional Government Services Authority (the “Authority") is an independent administrative 
and fiscal government agency whose purpose is to provide services for public agencies and other 
non-profit entities at reduced net costs. The Authority was established by a Joint Powers 
Agreement on March 1, 2001, under the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the 
Government Code of the State of California. 
 
Members of the Authority currently include the City of San Rafael, City of Larkspur, the 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), the Town of Yountville, the City of Dublin and 
the City of Walnut Creek.  A six member board consisting of one representative from each 
member controls the Authority.  None of the member entities exercise specific control over 
budgeting and financing of the Authority’s activities beyond their representation on the board.  

 
B. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 
Enterprise Fund 
 
The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund and its financial statements are prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the 
Authority's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority 
include fees for services. Operating expenses of the Authority include the cost of personnel 
providing the services, administrative expenses and other professional services. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expense. 
 
Fiduciary Fund 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. The Authority uses an agency fund for cash held on behalf of other government 
entities.  These funds are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets. The agency 
funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 
Accordingly, the Authority presents only a statement of fiduciary net assets and does not present 
a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the enterprise 
fund financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the 
Authority’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are presented on an economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the enterprise fund financial 
statements. 
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C. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Regional Government Services Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity 
of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 

D. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

The Authority extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations.  The Authority has 
not experienced any significant bad debt losses, accordingly no provision has been made for 
doubtful accounts and accounts receivable are shown at full value. 
 

E. INVESTMENTS 
 

Under provisions of the Authority’s investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of 
the California Government Code, the Authority may deposit and invest in the following: 

• Local Agency Bonds 
• U.S Treasury Obligations 
• U.S Agency Securities 
• Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
• CalTRUST Investment Pool 
• Local Agency Investment Fund 

 
The Authority records its investments in the CalTRUST investment pool at fair market value. 
Changes in fair market value are reported as revenue in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position. The effect of recording investments at fair market value is reflected 
as an increase in the fair value of investments on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position.  Fair market values of investments have been determined by the 
sponsoring government based on quoted market prices. The Authority’s investments in the 
CalTRUST investment pool have been valued based on the relative fair value of the entire 
external pool to the external pool’s respective amortized cost. 
 

F. UNEARNED REVENUE 
 

When the Authority collect fees in advance for services provided to others, these amounts are 
recorded as unearned revenue on the statement of net position until the respective services have 
been provided. 

 
G. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

 
The Authority has a PTO (paid time off) policy in effect.  It is the Authority’s policy to permit 
employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave.  Vacation hours can accrue up to a 
maximum of two times the annual allowable amount, subject to the individual employment 
agreement.  The Authority pays all earned vacation pay upon termination.  All accumulated 
vacation pay is recorded as an expense and a liability annually. 
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H. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Authority is a governmental entity and as such its income is exempt from taxation under 
Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701d of the California and Taxation 
Code. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 

I. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
 

J. RECLASSIFICATIONS 
 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year balances to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

 Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following: 
 

2013 2012

Cash on hand and in banks 257,878$      62,141$        
CalTRUST Funds 3,090,463     3,566,839     
Local Agency Investment Fund 60,444          48,110          

   Total Cash and Investments 3,408,785     3,677,090     

Cash and investments held in
  fiduciary capacity (2,493,412)    (2,012,120)    

   Net Cash and Investments 915,373$      1,664,970$    
 

 
The Authority is holding cash and investments on behalf of Local Government Services 
Authority and Municipal Services Authority totaling $2,493,412 and $2,012,120 for the years 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 8 – Related Party Transactions). 
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Cash in Bank 
The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash is covered by federal depository insurance up to 
$250,000. Should deposits exceed the insured limits, the balance is covered by collateral held by 
the bank in accordance with California law requiring the depository bank to hold collateral equal 
to 110% of the excess government funds on deposit.   

 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
The Authority is a voluntary participant in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is 
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of 
the state of California and the Pooled Money Investment Board.  The State Treasurer’s Office 
pools these funds with those of other governmental agencies in the state and invests the cash.  
The fair value of the Authority’s investment in this pool, which approximates cost, is reported in 
the accompanying financial statements based upon the Authority’s pro-rata share of the fair value 
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that 
portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained 
by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Funds are accessible and transferable 
to the master account with twenty-four hour notice.  The Pooled Money Investment Board has 
established policies, goals, and objectives to make certain that their goal of safety, liquidity, and 
yield are not jeopardized.  Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage 
obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset backed securities, and floating rate securities 
issued by Federal Agencies, government-sponsored enterprises and corporations. The monies 
held in the LAIF are not subject to categorization by risk category.  It is also not rated as to credit 
risk by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  LAIF is administered by the State 
Treasurer and audited annually by the Pooled Money Investment Board and the State 
Controller’s Office.  Copies of this audit may be obtained from the State Treasurer’s Office: 915 
Capitol Mall, Sacramento, California 95814. 
 
CalTRUST Investment Pool 
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST); a 
public joint powers authority formed to pool and invest the funds of public agencies.  CalTRUST 
invests in fixed-income securities eligible for investment pursuant to California Government 
Code Sections 53601 and 53635.  Investment guidelines adopted by the board of Trustees may 
further restrict the types of investments that are held by the Trust.  Leveraging within the Trust’s 
portfolios is prohibited.  The fair value of the Authority’s investment in this pool is reported in 
the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Authority’s pro-rata share of 
the fair value provided by CalTRUST for the entire CalTRUST portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by CalTRUST, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that an agency 
manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and 
longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the 
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the 
cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.  
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized statistical rating organization. The monies held in the CalTRUST and LAIF 
investment pools are not subject to categorization by risk category.  It is also not rated as to 
credit risk by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The investment policy of Regional Government Services Authority contains no limitations on the 
amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California 
Government Code.  There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total 
Authority investments for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk  
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit 
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. 

 
3. LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

 
The following is a schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013: 
 

Balance Balance Current 
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013 Portion

Compensated absences 229,795$        -$             1,073$         228,722$        57,180$       
CJPIA Assessments 445,590         86,114         359,476          -                 
OPEB liability 193,004         18,955       -                 211,959          -                 

Total 868,389$        18,955$     87,187$       800,157$        57,180$       
 

 
4. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS  
 
 Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Authority has established a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457(b), whereby employees may elect to defer portions of their compensation in a self-
directed investment plan for retirement. Plan assets are invested in each individual's name with a 
deferred compensation plan provider. Distributions are made upon the participant's termination, 
retirement, death or total disability, and in a manner in accordance with the election made by the 
participant. All employees are eligible for plan participation.  Employee contributions to the plan for 
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $158,142 and $216,328, respectively. 
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4. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
The Authority believes it has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care 
that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Authority has formally established a trust 
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g) for all of its deferred compensation plans 
to provide protection from the claims of the employer's general creditors. Accordingly deferred 
compensation assets placed in the trust are not reflected in these financial statements. 

 
Other Defined Contribution Plan 
The Authority has also established a defined contribution plan in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 401(a). The employer contributes 10% of regular salary on behalf of the employee and 
may contribute an additional amount up to 5% subject to individual employee’s employment 
agreement. Plan assets are invested in each individual's name with the defined contribution plan 
provider. Distributions are made upon the participant's termination, retirement, death or total 
disability, and in a manner in accordance with the election made by the participant. Contributions to 
the plan for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 totaled $405,230 and $559,014, 
respectively, and were contributed by the Authority.  

 
The Authority believes it has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care 
that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Authority has formally established a trust 
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(f) for its defined contribution plan to provide 
protection from the claims of the employer's general creditors. Accordingly defined contribution 
assets placed in the trust are not reflected in these financial statements. 
 

5. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

A. Plan Description 
 

Certain employees who retire from the Authority with 10 years of service are eligible to receive 
health care benefits covering themselves and any qualified members.  For those employees with 
employment agreements stipulating this benefit, the Authority pays 100% of the employer 
contribution for active employees’ single coverage under a health benefit plan administered by 
the Public Employee’s Retirement System (PERS) in which the individual is able to select, on 
an annual basis, an insurance carrier from a number of insurance carriers.  All other retirees are 
eligible for the PERS mandated benefit coverage, under which the Authority currently would 
pay up to $112 per month for any health coverage, subject to the PERS vesting schedule. 

 
B. Funding Policy 

 
The Authority has not elected to participate in the CalPERS OPEB Trust, form its own trust or 
participate in another OPEB Trust because it does not intend to remain in CalPERS Medical 
Plan indefinitely. The Authority is pursuing other pay-as-you-go retiree medical benefit plans 
that are more consistent with its business plan of servicing public and nonprofit agencies. 
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5. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 

The Authority’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expense is calculated based on 
the annual required contributions (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
the parameters of GASB 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.  The following table shows the components of 
the Authority's Annual OPEB Cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Authority’s Net OPEB Obligation: 

 
 
 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 22,396$                
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 7,720                    
Adjustment to annual required contribution (11,162)                 

     Annual OPEB cost 18,955                  

Contributions made -                       

   Change in Net OPEB obligation 18,955                  

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 193,004                

Net OPEB obligation - end of year 211,959$               
 

 
The Regional Government Services Authority Annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of Annual 
OPEB Cost contributed to the plan, and the Net OPEB Obligation for the past three years are as 
follows: 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ended
Annual OPEB 

Cost
Percentage 
Contributed

Net OPEB 
Obligation

June 30, 2011 78,000$           0.0% 110,000$         
June 30, 2012 83,004$           0.0% 193,004$         
June 30, 2013 18,955$           0.0% 211,959$          
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5. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 

D. Funding Status and Funding Progress 
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the Annual Required 
Contributions of the Regional Government Services Authority are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend 
information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 
E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point.  The methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
 
The plan's most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2012.  In that valuation, 
the Entry Age Normal Cost Method was used.  The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% 
discount rate, and a medical trend assumption of 8.0% graded down by 1.0% per year to an 
ultimate rate of 5.0% after three years.  These assumptions reflect an implicit 4.0% general 
inflation assumption.  The Regional Government Services Authority unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over 30 years.   
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6. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 
 

Effective July 1, 2012, the Authority is a member of Municipal Services Authority (MSA) which 
provides coverage for workers’ compensation, general liability and errors and omissions.   
 
MSA is governed by a Board consisting of representatives from its two member agencies. The Board 
controls the operations, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, 
independent of any influence by the member agencies beyond their representation on the Board. Each 
member agency pays a contribution or assessment commensurate with the level of coverage and 
services requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in the joint 
powers authority. Payments to MSA for the year ended June 30, 2013 were $635,000, $300,000 in 
response to an MSA request to build reserves, and $335,000 to support general liability and workers 
compensation coverage.   A portion of the $335,000 was allocated to Local Government Services. 
Full financial statements are available separately from MSA. Condensed financial information for the 
year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Total Assets 1,016,565$    
Total Liabilities 197,042        
Net Position 819,523$      

Revenues 1,235,000$    
Expenses 415,477        
Change in Net Postion 819,523$      

 
 

Prior to July 1, 2012, the Authority was a member of California Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(CJPIA).  CJPIA is composed of California public entities and provides coverage for workers’ 
compensation, property, liability and errors and omissions. The CJPIA governing board is made up of 
one member from each entity. Each member agency pays a contribution or assessment commensurate 
with the level of coverage and services requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to 
their participation in the joint powers authority.  CJPIA prepares an annual retrospective premium 
calculation for those members and former members who participated in the workers’ compensation 
and liability programs.  As of June 30, 2013, the Authority had a retrospective payable of $359,476 
($149,442 for workers’ compensation and $210,034 for liability) due to CJPIA.  At June 30, 2012 the 
amount due for liability was $58,940 and the Authority had a net refund due for workers’ 
compensation in the amount of $2,677. 

 
7. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Authority restated the beginning net position to reduce 
the compensated absences for sick and admin leave that would not be paid out upon termination 
in the amount of $110,117. Net position at July 1, 2011 was originally reported at $468,982 and 
was restated at $579,099. 
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8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Regional Government Services Authority (RGSA) provides administration for Local Government 
Services Authority (LGSA) and Municipal Services Authority (MSA) and allocates a share of its 
administrative overhead to LGSA and MSA each month based on revenues to date.  The amounts 
charged for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $772,102 and $958,131, respectively for 
LGSA and $45,000 for MSA for the year ended June 30, 2013. RGSA also holds cash and 
investments on behalf of LGSA and MSA.  At June 30, 2013, the amount held on behalf of LGSA is 
$2,080,847 and MSA is $412,565.  At June 30, 2012, the amount held on behalf of LGSA is 
$2,012,120 and MSA is $0. 
 

9. SPECIAL ITEM 
 
The Authority recorded a liability for a claim related to its participation in CJPIA (Note 6) in the 
amount of $386,650 for the year ended June 30, 2012.  For the year ended June 30, 2013, the 
Authority reversed the accrual as the amounts related to the claim will be reflected in future CJPIA 
assessments. 
 
 

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Regional Government Services Authority management evaluated its June 30, 2013 financial 
statements for subsequent events through February 21, 2014, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued.  Management is not aware of any subsequent events that would require 
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.  
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Actuarial
Actuarial Value 

of Assets

Actuarailly 
Accrued 

Liability (AAL)
Unfunded AAL 

(UAAL) Funded Ratio
Covered 
Payroll

Actuarial 
UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Valuation Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
6/30/2010 -$               87,000$           87,000$           0% 1,206,000$     7.21%
7/1/2012 -$               81,535$           81,535$           0% 4,273,982$     1.91%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON  
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Board of Directors 
Regional Government Services Authority 
Carmel Valley, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Regional Government Services Authority (the 
“Authority”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Management of Regional Government Services Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 
financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financials statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.   
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2013-1 
that we consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Regional Government Services Authority’s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Regional Government Services Authority’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit Regional Government Services 
Authority’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter dated 
February 21, 2014. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors, others 
within the entity, and the California State Controller’s Office and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 21, 2014 
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2013-01   Monthly Accounting 
 
Observation:   
There were several accounts identified with balances that were either incorrect or the details and 
nature of the balance were unknown to management. 
 
Recommendations:   
All balance sheet accounts should be reviewed and reconciled on a monthly basis.  Unknown 
balances should be investigated and corrected in a timely manner to ensure that the financial 
statements presented to the board are accurate.  If an account is still being investigated, that fact 
should be disclosed in the presentation of the monthly financial statements. 
 
Corrective Action Plan: 
The Auditors Recommendation has been implemented effective November 2013.  All balance sheet 
accounts are now reviewed and reconciled on a monthly basis.  Unknown balances are investigated 
and corrected in a timely manner to ensure that the financial statements presented to the board are 
accurate.  If an account is still under investigation, that will be disclosed in the presentation of the 
monthly financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
Board of Directors 
Local Government Services Authority 
Carmel Valley, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying Statement of Net Position of Local Government Services Authority 
(the Authority) as of June 30, 2013 and the related Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position and Cash Flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum 
Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic 
financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

http://www.jpmcpa.com
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Local Government Services Authority as of June 30, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as systems prescribed 
by the State Controller’s Office and state regulators governing special districts. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The financial statements of Local Government Services Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2012 were audited by other auditors. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial 
statements in their report dated February 6, 2013. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 - 7 and Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment 
Benefits on page 19 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 
2014 on our consideration of Local Government Services Authority internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Local 
Government Services Authority internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 21, 2014
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The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Local Government Services 
Authority (the “Authority” or “LGS”) provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for the 
fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2013.  Please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial 
statements, which follow this section.   
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority’s net position decreased $772,722 from the 
prior fiscal year.  This is primarily due to the four factors noted below. 

• The Authority terminated its services agreement with Transbay Joint Powers Authority in 
December FY2012, resulting in decreases in revenue and expenditures compared to the prior 
fiscal year. 

• The Authority joined the Municipal Services Authority insurance pool and contributed an 
additional $600,000 mid-year to MSA reserves for claims expenses.   

• At mid-year, the Authority incurred additional administrative cost allocation expenses due to 
Regional Government Services Authority’s added one-time costs for bringing financial and 
payroll services in-house.  RGS provides administrative services to the Authority. 

• Due to restructuring and long term fiscal discipline, the Local Government Services Authority is 
in a strong financial position. The Authority is heavily dependent on several major clients, but 
because of its purchase of admin services from RGS, an agency that is growing its client base 
and service offerings, LGS will be a lessening portion of central administrative costs.  Thus, 
future changes in client revenue will have less impact on LGS net position than they would 
otherwise have.  While LGS’s net position decreased this fiscal year and is budgeted to decrease 
slightly in FY2014, the Authority’s investment in RGS administrative efficiencies, technical 
infrastructure, and internal processes should result in positive income growth within the next 12 
months.   

• The Authority has designated a portion ($378,028) of the unrestricted net position for post-
employment medical benefits and will convert to pay-as-you-go Health Retirement Accounts in 
the 2014 fiscal year.  It is anticipated that moneys already set aside for the OPEB liability will be 
sufficient to fund prior service contributions.  

 
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Authority’s administrative services provider, 
RGS, completed a transition of payroll and financial services from external consultant provision 
to RGS staff services, and payroll processing from ADP to Automatic Payroll Systems, Inc. 
(APS).  The consultant contract assigned two full-time staff to perform RGS services and RGS 
assigned one Sr. Analyst to troubleshoot billing and payroll problems.  RGS now staffs these 
services with a part-time Sr. Analyst and Finance Technician and two part-time Payroll 
Technicians.  These investments in JPA resources results in lower operating costs, improved 
reporting and controls, and increased capacity to take on addition client work and new client 
services.  In turn, LGS has lessened its exposure to rapid changes in the level of client services 
not being proportionally matched by changes in administrative costs because part-time hourly 
staff can be scaled up or down more quickly than could contractual services.   
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• As a result of this successful transition, in FY2014 the Authority will be able to benefit from 

RGS’ review of remaining technology needs, including updating website, cost model and 
investigating the need for customer relations management software to help internal 
communications regarding client contacts, contracts, billing information and other business 
needs. 

 
USE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO ANALYZE THE AUTHORITY’S CONDITION 
Financial statements can be used to answer the question, “Is an agency better off or worse off as a result 
of this year’s activities?”  The financial statements report information about the Authority’s activities in a 
way that helps answer this question.  The statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, 
which means that all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of 
when cash is received or paid.  An explanation of each of the statements and the information they report 
follows. 
 
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
The Statement of Net Position details the Authority’s assets, liabilities and the difference between them, 
known as net position, at the end of the fiscal years, June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012.  The level of net 
position is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health.  Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Authority’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
Other factors, such as shifting (i.e. contributing) assets and liabilities to the new insurance JPA, 
Municipal Services Authority, must also be considered to assess the overall health of the Authority.   
 
THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information which shows 
how the Authority’s net position changed during the fiscal year.  The statement measures the success of 
the Authority’s operations during the year and determines whether the Authority has recovered its costs 
through user fees, its only revenue source.   
 
THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the Authority’s cash receipts and 
disbursements during the fiscal years.  Cash activity is grouped in the following two categories: 
operations and investing.  These statements differ from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position, because they only account for transactions that result in cash receipts or 
disbursements.  For example, the amount shown as receipts from customers on the first line of the 
statements represents cash received during the fiscal year, rather than revenue earned.    
 
THE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Notes to Financial Statements provide a description of accounting policies used to prepare the 
financial statements and present material disclosures required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America that are not otherwise present in the financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
NET POSITION 
The Authority’s net position at June 30, 2013 totaled $748,812 compared with $1,521,534 at June 30, 
2012.  The decrease represents decreased cash and investments due to decreased client revenues, as noted 
above, additional mid-year contributions to MSA, increased assessments from the Authority’s prior 
insurance pool, and increased OPEP liability.  A summary of the Authority’s asset, liability and net 
position balances at the end of the current and prior fiscal years appears on the following chart. 
 

Percent
2011 2012 2013 Change Change

Current Assets 2,607,415$    2,560,241$    2,371,457$    (188,784)$     -7.4%

Current Liabilities 864,418        635,400        1,041,648     406,248        63.9%
Non-Current Liabilities 665,637        403,307        580,997        177,690        44.1%

Total Liabilities 1,530,055     1,038,707     1,622,645     583,938        56.2%

Net Position
Unrestricted 1,077,360$    1,521,534$    748,812$      (772,722)$     -50.8%

 
 
The June 30, 2013 cash and cash equivalents balance decreased $68,727 from the balance at the end of the 
prior year.  The Authority invests surplus cash in the Local Agency Investment Fund, a governmental 
investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer, and also in the Investment Trust 
of California (CalTRUST), a public joint powers authority formed to pool and invest the funds of public 
agencies.     
 
The unrestricted portion of net position has been designated by the Board of Directors based on potential 
contingencies and policy-based priorities.  In prior years, the Authority has designated a portion of 
unrestricted net position and has collected $378,028 through June 30, 2013, from its clients for post-
employment medical benefits for eligible employees.  This amount is now shown as a Non-Current 
Liability and thus not included in the Unrestricted Net Position.   Additional information on the designation 
of unrestricted net position can be found in the notes to the financial statements.   
 
REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
The Authority reported a decrease in net position of $772,722 for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Net 
operating revenues were significantly less than the prior year, due to the termination of services to a large 
client agency in the prior fiscal year.  This service agreement was in place for seven years, and the 
agency’s $240,000 deposit was returned less charges owed.    

   
Operating expenses also decreased significantly from the prior fiscal year for the same reason.  This 
category includes all costs related to payroll and employee benefits, as well as general and administrative 
expenses, including an additional $600,000 contribution to MSA claims reserves.  The largest single line 
item decrease ($1,578,208) represents personnel expenses, most of which was attributable to the 
aforementioned client termination.   
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The following table summarizes the Authority’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position for the current and prior fiscal years: 

 
Percent

2011 2012 2013 Change Change

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 7,286,067$    6,892,026$    4,817,793$    (2,074,233)$  -30.1%

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 5,914,003     5,625,962     4,047,754     (1,578,208)    -28.1%
Professional services 2,756           2,756           -                  (2,756)          -100.0%
Administration 1,226,249     965,995        1,542,761     576,766        59.7%

Total Operating Expenses 7,143,008     6,594,713     5,590,515     (1,004,198)    -15.2%

Operating Income (Loss) 143,059        297,313        (772,722)       (1,070,035)    -359.9%

Beginning Net Position 934,301        1,224,221     1,521,534     297,313        24.3%
Ending Net Position 1,077,360$    1,521,534$    748,812$      (772,722)$     -50.8%

 
 

 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
At June 30, 2013, the Authority had no capital assets, no depreciation expenses and no immediate plans 
to acquire capital assets in the future. 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND BUDGET 
 
The Authority is a unique government agency, in that it is 100% fee-for-service driven AND that it 
provides general and administrative services to local and regional government agencies.  How we can be 
of value to local governments varies from agency to agency, but the Authority primarily offers on-going 
staffing and employment services.  Agencies use our services when they determine it is in their best to do 
so.  Because financial pressures on local governments are cyclical but ever increasing, the demand for 
LGS services is expected to vary but to generally increase over time as long as those services are relevant 
to the needs of and cost effective for public agencies. 
 
The Authority’s governing body – its Board of Directors and committees – guide and ensure that the 
Authority stays current with its mission to serve local agencies in a fiscally sustainable manner.  LGS 
growth over the last 12 years is testament to the vision and practicality of that guidance.  LGS began with 
no clients and no employees, and now has five active clients and over 30 employees.  LGS initially had to 
borrow start-up funds, and now debt-free and has three-quarters of a million dollars (not including 
insurance reserves in MSA) in net equity.  There have been and will be ‘bumps’ along the way that 
require adjustments and investments in the Authority’s plans and capacity.  Fiscal year 2013 was a year 
of adjustments and investments.  LGS adjusted to a major client leaving by focusing improving its 
efficiency and services to existing client agencies.  



LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

JUNE 30, 2013AND 2012   
 

 7

 
The 2013-2014 budget reflects the loss of this major client and the investment in capacity.  A small 
deficit is anticipated as the Authority retools itself for these initiatives.  By the end of the fiscal year, if 
not before, it is expected that monthly financial performance will again be positive.     

 
The Local Government Services Authority is constantly striving to be a valuable partner to the local 
government community, through innovation and excellent customer service.  With the continued 
contributions from staff, Directors, and client agencies, it will remain a valuable public asset long into 
the future. Planning that is being accomplished through the governing body will guide the Authority as it 
strives to meet its strategic objectives and accomplish its mission: 

 
Local Government Services is a California joint powers authority that provides high-quality staffing and 
support services to meet local government needs. 
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2013 2012
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 2,080,847$        2,012,120$       
Accounts receivable 287,243            473,153            
Prepaid expenses 3,367               30,907             
CJPIA Deposits -                      44,061             

 Total Current Assets 2,371,457         2,560,241         

Total Assets 2,371,457         2,560,241         

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 288,081            166,082            
Due To Other Governments 600,000            -                      
Unearned revenue 114,500            179,500            
Client deposits -                      240,403            
Compensated absences - (current portion) 39,067              49,415             

 Total Current Liabilities 1,041,648         635,400            

Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated absences (long term portion) 91,155              115,303            
CJPIA Assessments 110,659            -                      
Unemployment claims payable 1,155               -                      
OPEB liability 378,028            288,004            

 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 580,997            403,307            

Total Liabilities 1,622,645         1,038,707         

NET POSITION

Net Position
Unrestricted 748,812$          1,521,534$       
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2013 2012

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 4,817,793$        6,892,026$        

Total Operating Revenues 4,817,793         6,892,026         

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 4,047,754 5,625,962
Professional services -                      2,756
Administration 1,542,761 965,995

Total Operating Expenses 5,590,515         6,594,713         

Operating Income (Loss) (772,722)           297,313            

Beginning Net Position 1,521,534         1,224,221         
Ending Net Position 748,812$          1,521,534$        
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2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received for services 4,698,300$    7,570,995$    
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (637,347)       (983,234)       
Cash paid to employees for services (3,992,226)    (5,734,427)    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 68,727          853,334        

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,012,120     1,158,786     

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,080,847$    2,012,120$    

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (772,722)$     297,313$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable 185,910        408,094        
Due from other governments -                  305,875        
Prepaid expenses 27,540          13,574          
CJPIA deposits 44,061          (7,789)          

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 121,999        (63,194)        
Unearned revenue (65,000)        (35,000)        
Client deposits (240,403)       -                  
Due to other governments 600,000        -                  
Compensated absences (34,496)        (108,465)       
CJPIA assessments 110,659        -                  
Claims payable 1,155           (64,078)        
OPEB liability 90,024          107,004        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 68,727$        853,334$      
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Local Government Services Authority ("Authority") is an independent administrative and fiscal 
government agency whose purpose is to provide services for public agencies and other non-profit 
entities at reduced net costs. The Authority was established by a Joint Powers Agreement on 
March 1, 2001, under the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the Government 
Code of the State of California. 
 
Members of the Authority currently include the City of San Rafael, City of Larkspur, the 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), the Town of Yountville, the City of Dublin and 
the City of Walnut Creek.  A six member board consisting of one representative from each 
member controls the Authority.  None of the member entities exercise specific control over 
budgeting and financing of the Authorities’ activities beyond their representation on the board. 

 
B. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 
The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund and its financial statements are prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the 
Authority's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority 
include fees for services. Operating expenses of the Authority include the cost of personnel 
providing the services, administrative expenses and other professional services. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expense. 

 
C. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Local Government Services Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 

D. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

The Authority extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations.  The Authority has 
not experienced any significant bad debt losses, accordingly no provision has been made for 
doubtful accounts and accounts receivable are shown at full value. 
 

E. RECLASSIFICATIONS 
 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year balances to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
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F. UNEARNED REVENUE 
 

The Authority collect fees in advance for services provided to others.  These amounts are 
recorded as unearned revenue on the statement of net position until the respective services have 
been provided. 
 

G. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

The Authority has a PTO (paid time off) policy in effect.  It is the Authority’s policy to permit 
employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave.  Vacation hours can accrue up to a 
maximum of two times the annual allowable amount, subject to the individual employment 
agreement.  The Authority pays all earned vacation pay upon termination.  All accumulated 
vacation pay is recorded as an expense and a liability annually. 
 

H. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Authority is a governmental entity and as such, its income is exempt from taxation under 
section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and section 23701d of the California Revenue and 
Taxation Code. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 

I. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, 
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

 
2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 consisted of CalTRUST Funds in the amount of 
$2,080,847 and $2,012,120, respectively.  The cash and investments are held by Regional 
Government Services Authority as a fiduciary on behalf of the Authority (See Note 8 – Related Party 
Transactions). 
 
CalTRUST Investment Pool 
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST); a public 
joint powers authority formed to pool and invest the funds of public agencies.  CalTRUST invests in 
fixed-income securities eligible for investment pursuant to California Government Code Sections 
53601 and 53635.  Investment guidelines adopted by the board of Trustees may further restrict the 
types of investments that are held by the Trust.  Leveraging within the Trust’s portfolios is 
prohibited.  The fair value of the Authority’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements at amounts based upon the Authority’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided 
by CalTRUST for the entire CalTRUST portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). 
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by CalTRUST, 
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 



LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY 
 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012   
 
 

 13

2.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that an agency manages its exposure to 
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by 
timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to 
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. The monies held in the CalTRUST investment pool is not subject to 
categorization by risk category.  It is also not rated as to credit risk by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The investment policy of Local Government Services Authority contains no limitations on the 
amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government 
Code.  There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total Authority 
investments for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk  
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party. 
 

3. LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
 

The following is a schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013: 
 

Balance Balance Current 
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013 Portion

Compensated absences 164,718$        -$          34,496$       130,222$        39,067$       
CJPIA Assessments -                   110,659     -                 110,659          -                 
OPEB liability 288,004         90,024       -                 378,028          -                 

Total 452,722$        200,683$   34,496$       618,909$        39,067$       
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4. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

A. PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 

The Authority contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension 
plan administered by CalPERS.  The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Benefit 
provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public 
Employees' Retirement Law.  CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  Copies of 
the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 
P Street, Sacramento, California 95814. 

 
B. FUNDING POLICY  

 
Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary, and the Authority is required 
to contribute an actuarially determined rate.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used for 
determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required 
employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-2013 was 11.42% of annual payroll.  The 
contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute.  The Authority's 
contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were 
$389,697, $684,110, and $707,131, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions 
for each year.   

 
5. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS 
 
 Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Authority has established a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457(b), whereby employees may elect to defer portions of their compensation in a self-
directed investment plan for retirement. Plan assets are invested in each individual's name with a 
deferred compensation plan provider. Distributions are made upon the participant's termination, 
retirement, death or total disability, and in a manner in accordance with the election made by the 
participant. All employees are eligible for plan participation.   Employee contributions to the plan for 
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $171,910 and $163,572, respectively. 
 
The Authority believes it has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care 
that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Authority has formally established a trust 
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g) for all of its deferred compensation plans 
to provide protection from the claims of the employer's general creditors. Accordingly deferred 
compensation assets placed in the trust are not reflected in these financial statements. 

 



LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY 
 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012   
 
 

 15

5. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
Other Defined Contribution Plan 
The Authority has also established a defined contribution plan in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 401(a). The employer may contribute up to 5% on behalf of the employee subject to 
individual employment agreement. Plan assets are invested in each individual's name with the 
defined contribution plan provider. Distributions are made upon the participant's termination, 
retirement, death or total disability, and in a manner in accordance with the election made by the 
participant. Contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 totaled $1,374 
and $879, respectively, and were contributed by the Authority. 
 
The Authority believes it has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care 
that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Authority has formally established a trust 
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(f) for its defined contribution plan to provide 
protection from the claims of the employer's general creditors. Accordingly defined contribution 
assets placed in the trust are not reflected in these financial statements. 
 

6. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
A. Plan Description 
 

Certain employees who retire from the Authority with 10 years of service are eligible to 
receive health care benefits covering themselves and any qualified members.  For those 
employees with employment agreements stipulating this benefit, the Authority pays 100% of 
the single rate premium charged to active employees under a health benefit plan administered 
by the Public Employee’s Retirement System (PERS) in which the individual is able to select, 
on an annual basis, an insurance carrier from a number of insurance carriers.  All other 
retirees are eligible for the PERS mandated benefit coverage, under which the Authority 
currently would pay up to $112 per month for any health coverage, subject to the PERS 
vesting schedule. 
 

B. Funding Policy 
 

The Authority has not elected to participate in the CalPERS OPEB Trust, form its own trust, 
or participate in another OPEB Trust because it does not intend to remain in CalPERS 
Medical Plan indefinitely. The Authority is pursuing other pay-as-you-go retiree medical 
benefit plans that are more consistent with its business plan of servicing public and nonprofit 
agencies. 
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C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The Authority’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expense is calculated based on 
the annual required contributions (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance 
with the parameters of GASB 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.  The following table shows the 
components of the Authority's Annual OPEB Cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the 
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Authority’s Net OPEB Obligation: 
 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 95,159$                
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 11,520                  
Adjustment to annual required contribution (16,655)                 

     Annual OPEB cost 90,024                  

Contributions made -                       

   Change in Net OPEB obligation 90,024                  

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 288,004                

Net OPEB obligation - end of year 378,028$               
 

The Local Government Services Authority Annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of Annual 
OPEB Cost contributed to the plan, and the Net OPEB Obligation are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ended

Annual OPEB 
Cost

Percentage 
Contributed

Net Ending 
OPEB 

Obligation
June 30, 2011 100,000$         0.0% 181,000$         
June 30, 2012 107,004$         0.0% 288,004$         
June 30, 2013 90,024$           0.0% 378,028$          
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D. Funding Status and Funding Progress 
 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the Annual Required 
Contributions of the Local and Regional Government Services Authorities are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear 
trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 
E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point.  The methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
 
The plan's most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2012.  In that valuation, 
the Entry Age Normal Cost Method was used.  The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% 
discount rate, and a medical trend assumption of 8.0% graded down by 1.0% per year to an 
ultimate rate of 5.0% after three years.  These assumptions reflect an implicit 4.0% general 
inflation assumption.  The Local Government Services Authority unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over 30 years.   
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7. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 
 

Effective July 1, 2012, the Authority is a member of Municipal Services Authority (MSA) which 
provides coverage for workers’ compensation, general liability and errors and omissions.   
 
MSA is governed by a Board consisting of representatives from its two member agencies. The Board 
controls the operations, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, 
independent of any influence by the member agencies beyond their representation on the Board. Each 
member agency pays a contribution or assessment commensurate with the level of coverage and 
services requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in the joint 
powers authority. Payments to MSA for the year ended June 30, 2013 were $600,000 in response 
MSA requests to build reserves, as well as an allocated share of monthly payments paid by Regional 
Government Services to support general liability and workers compensation coverage. Full financial 
statements are available separately from MSA. Condensed financial information for the year ended 
June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

 
Total Assets 1,016,565$    
Total Liabilities 197,042        
Net Position 819,523$      

Revenues 1,235,000$    
Expenses 415,477        
Change in Net Postion 819,523$      

 
 

8. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Authority restated the beginning net position to reduce 
the compensated absences for sick and admin leave that would not be paid out upon termination 
in the amount of $146,861. Net position at July 1, 2011 was originally reported at $1,077,360 
and was restated at $1,224,221. 
 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Regional Government Services Authority (RGSA) provides administration for Local Government 
Services Authority and allocates a share of its administrative overhead to LGSA each month based 
on revenues to date.  The amounts charged for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were 
$772,102 and $958,131, respectively. RGSA also holds cash and investments on behalf of the 
Authority.  At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the amounts held on behalf of the Authority were $2,080,847 
and $2,012,120, respectively. 
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Local Government Services Authority’s management evaluated its June 30, 2013 financial statements 
for subsequent events through February 21, 2014, the date the financial statements were available to 
be issued.  Management is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements.  
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Actuarial
Actuarial Value 

of Assets

Actuarailly 
Accrued 

Liability (AAL)
Unfunded AAL 

(UAAL) Funded Ratio
Covered 
Payroll

Funded 
Ratio

Valuation Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
6/30/2010 -$               205,000$         205,000$         0% 3,217,000$     6.37%
7/1/2012 -$               338,400$         338,400$         0% 3,100,396$     10.91%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON  
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Board of Directors 
Local Government Services Authority 
Carmel Valley, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Local Government Services Authority (the 
“Authority”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Management of Local Government Services Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered 
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 
financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financials statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.   
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2013-1 
that we consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Local Government Services Authority’s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Local Government Services Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit Local Government Services 
Authority’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter dated 
February 21, 2014. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors, others 
within the entity, and the California State Controller’s Office and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 21, 2014 
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2013-01   Monthly Accounting 

 
Observation:   
There were several accounts identified with balances that were either incorrect or the details and 
nature of the balance were unknown to management. 
 
Recommendations:   
All balance sheet accounts should be reviewed and reconciled on a monthly basis.  Unknown 
balances should be investigated and corrected in a timely manner to ensure that the financial 
statements presented to the board are accurate.  If an account is still being investigated, that fact 
should be disclosed in the presentation of the monthly financial statements. 
 
Corrective Action Plan: 
The Auditor’s Recommendation has been implemented effective with November 2013 preliminary 
results.  All balance sheet accounts are now reviewed and reconciled on a monthly basis. Unknown 
balances are investigated and corrected in a timely manner to ensure that the financial statements 
presented to the Board are accurate.   If an account is still under investigation, that is disclosed in the 
presentation of the monthly financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Municipal Services Authority 
Carmel Valley, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying Statement of Net Position of Municipal Services Authority (the 
Authority) as of June 30, 2013 and the related Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position and Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements for the eighteen month period then ended.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic 
financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

http://www.jpmcpa.com
mailto:dbecker@jpmcpa.com
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Municipal Services Authority as of June 30, 2013, and the respective 
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the eighteen month period then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as systems 
prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulators governing special districts. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Authority has estimated its own outstanding 
claims liability without consulting a certified actuary.   Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 – 6, Claims Reconciliation by Type of Contract and Claims 
Development Information by Type of Contract be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 
2014 on our consideration of Municipal Services Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and 
our tests of its compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Municipal Services 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 21, 2014
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Municipal Services Authority (MSA) is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) established to provide its 
members a joint program and system for workers’ compensation, liability and crime insurance.  MSA 
may also provide other joint purchasing and/or systems, such as health and other benefit programs.  The 
membership in MSA on June 30, 2013 consisted of two Joint Powers Authorities:  Regional Government 
Services Authority and Local Government Services Authority. 

 

MSA was formed in January 2012 and became operational July 1, 2012.  The Authority retained Keenan 
& Associates as its insurance broker.  Workers’ Compensation coverage for the fiscal year was self-
insured at $1,000,000 with a maximum cash payout of $200,000 per claim per year.  Liability coverage 
self-insured retention (SIR) is at $50,000 per occurrence.   

 
This section of the annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of MSA’s financial 
performance during the period from January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013.  Please read it in conjunction with 
MSA’s financial statements, which follow this section.  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• Due to the high-deductible workers’ compensation coverage available at the start of the fiscal year 

and prior period liability claims in process, the member agencies contributed an additional $900,000 
towards MSA claims reserve during the fiscal year. 

• Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of the current year were 
$198,676. 

• Revenues and expenses were in compliance with budget assumptions. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This report consists of three parts – management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the financial 
statements, and required supplementary information.  
 
The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and 
necessarily include amounts based upon reliable estimates and judgments.  The Statement of Net 
Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash 
Flows are included along with Notes to the Financial Statements to clarify unique accounting policies 
and financial information. 
 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Pool’s assets and liabilities.  All of the current year’s 
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position. 
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MSA reports its activities as an enterprise fund.  An enterprise fund is a proprietary fund, and as such 
uses full accrual accounting for its activities.  The changes in net position presented on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position are on an accrual basis and do not necessarily coincide 
with the Statement of Cash Flows which presents information about the cash receipts and cash payments 
during the year. 
 

Condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2013: 

2013 
ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
  Cash and Investments  $  416,565  
  Accounts receivable      600,000  

     Total Assets     1,016,565  

LIABILITIES 
Non-Current Liabilities:      
  Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses      197,042  

NET POSITION 
Net Position   
  Unrestricted  $  819,523  
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Condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2013: 

2013 
Operating Revenues: 
  Member Contributions  $  1,235,000  
     Total Operating Revenues      1,235,000  

Operating Expenses:      
  Provision for claims expense 198,676 
  Insurance 112,301 
  Administration 104,500 
     Total Operating Expenses 415,477 

     Operating Income (Loss)      819,523  

Beginning Net Position - 
Ending Net Position  $  819,523  

 
Assets 
 
Total assets of MSA were budgeted to increase incrementally each year, starting with this first fiscal year 
of operation.  As previously noted, a high workers’ compensation coverage deductible and prior period 
MSA member claims in process caused the Board to ask for additional mid-year member contributions to 
prepare for contingencies.  
 
Claims payments during the period from January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, were minimal, resulting in a 
higher cash balance.   
 
Liabilities 
 
A provision was made for insured events of the current year of $198,676.  This provision was reduced by 
actual expenses of $1,634 to equal non-current liabilities of MSA.     
 
MSA has no long-term debt.  
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Net Position 
 
MSA’s unrestricted net assets increased from no assets at the time of formation to $819,523 by June 30, 
2013.  Because of high workers’ compensation self-insured retention ($1 million with $200,000 cash 
flow protection) members made additional midyear contributions to boost claims reserves.  For FY2014 
an additional SIR buy-down was purchased that lowers the deductible to $50,000.  Thus, staff believes 
we have substantially increased confidence that MSA assets will be adequate to pay actual claims costs.  
State regulations require a confidence level of 70%, so MSA’s Board will review its risk probability and 
consider adopting a higher confidence target level for FY2015 and beyond.   
 
Revenues 
 
MSA’s operating revenues were $1.235 million, of which $335,000 was budgeted and the $900,000 was 
additional mid-year member contributions.  MSA’s only source for revenues is member contributions.   
 
Expenses 
 
MSA’s operating expenses (claims, reinsurance and administrative expenses) totaled $415,477 including 
a $198,676 provision for incurred claims.   
 
Description of Facts or Conditions Expected to have a Significant Effect on Financial Position or 
Results of Operations 
 
Prior period claims resulting from member activity while under the California Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority are expected to filter through the CJPIA claims administration, processing and allocation 
procedures over the next several years.  It is intended that and funding has been provided for MSA to pay 
for these expenses.  At present there are no other known facts or conditions that are expected to have a 
significant effect on the financial position or results of operations. 
 
FINANCIAL CONTACT 
 
Questions concerning the information provided in this discussion and analysis and MSA’s financial 
statements should be addressed to: 
 
MSA 
Richard Averett, Executive Director 
PO Box 1350 
Carmel Valley, CA  93924 
831-308-1508 
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2013
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 416,565$          
Accounts receivable 600,000            

Total Assets 1,016,565         

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities:
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses 197,042

NET POSITION

Net Position
Unrestricted 819,523$          
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2013

Operating Revenues:
Member contributions 1,235,000$        

Total Operating Revenues 1,235,000         

Operating Expenses:
Provision for claims expense 198,676
Insurance 112,301
Administration 104,500

Total Operating Expenses 415,477            

Operating Income (Loss) 819,523            

Beginning Net Position -                      
Ending Net Position 819,523$          
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2013
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 635,000$      
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (216,801)       
Cash paid for claims (1,634)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 416,565        

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year -                  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 416,565$      

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 819,523$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable (600,000)       

Increase (decrease) in:
Claims liability 197,042        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 416,565$      
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Municipal Services Authority (Authority) is a Joint Powers Authority established in January 
2012 to provide a joint program and system for workers’ compensation, liability and crime 
insurance programs for each member of the Authority.  

The member agencies of Municipal Services Authority are Local Government Services Authority 
and Regional Government Services Authority.  For financial reporting purposes, the Authority is 
considered a stand-alone government that separately issued financial statements.  Accordingly, 
the Authority is jointly governed by its member participants as a separate and specific activity in 
which member participants retain an ongoing financial responsibility. 

Municipal Services Authority has elected to enter a cooperation agreement with Local and 
Regional Government Services Authorities to share administrative services, thereby taking 
advantage of pooled staff resources and saving support costs. 

Admission 
 

Any public agency may become a member of the Authority upon two-thirds vote of the members 
present at a Board of Directors’ meeting and by paying an appropriate entry fee or charge, as 
established by the Board of Directors. 

 
Withdrawal 

 
Agencies may withdraw upon advance written notice subject to the joint powers agreement and 
bylaws of the Authority.  The effect of withdrawal (or termination does not terminate the 
responsibility of the agency to continue paying its share of assessments or other financial 
obligations incurred by reason of its previous participation. 

 
B. DESCRIPTION OF PROGRAMS 

 
Workers’ Compensation 

 
The Workers’ Compensation Program was established to account for the provision of this 
coverage to participating members.  The program year runs from July 1 to June 30.  Funding is 
based on member contributions established by the Board.  The Authority has contracted with a 
third party administrator to administer claims on behalf of participating members. 

 
Self -insured coverage at June 30, 2013: 

  JPA’s SIR:   $1,000,000 (Maximum cash payout is $200,000 per claim per year) 
Excess Insurance:  $10,000,000 per occurrence 
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B. DESCRIPTION OF PROGRAMS 
 

Liability  
 

The Liability Program was established for the purposes of creating a pool to share the costs of 
liability claims, administrative costs, and excess insurance for Members.  The program year runs 
from July 1 – June 30.  Funding for the program is based on member contributions established by 
the Board.  The Authority has contracted with a third party administrator to administer claims on 
behalf of participating members. 

 
Self -insured coverage at June 30, 2013: 

JPA’s SIR: $50,000 per occurrence 
Excess Insurance: $11,000,000 per occurrence 
 

C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund and its financial statements are prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the 
Authority's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are 
member contributions. Operating expenses of the Authority include the cost claims, insurance 
and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported 
as non-operating revenue and expense. 
 

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Municipal Services Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 

E. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the 
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.  At June 30, 2013, the total accounts 
receivable balance was considered collectible. 
 
 

F. INCOME TAXES 
 

The Authority is a governmental entity and as such its income is exempt from taxation under 
Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701d of the California and Taxation 
Code. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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G. UNPAID CLAIMS LIABILITIES (CLAIMS RESERVES AND CLAIMS INCURRED 
BUT NOT REPORTED) 

 
Each program establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims 
(including future allocated claim adjustment expense) that have been reported but not settled, and 
of claims that have been incurred but not reported.  The length of time for which such costs must 
be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved.  Estimated amounts of salvage and 
subrogation and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for 
unpaid claims.  Because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes 
in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims 
liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as 
general liability. 

 
Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical 
techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and 
other economic and social factors.  A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future 
claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data 
that reflect past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of 
past experience.  Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the 
periods in which they are made. 

 
 J. UNALLOCATED LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE 
 

The liability for unallocated loss adjustment expense includes all costs expected to be incurred in 
connection with the settlement of unpaid claims that cannot be related to a specific claim.  
Management has estimated the accrual based on past experience and the amount is included in 
general and administrative expense.   

 
K. EXCESS INSURANCE 

 
The Authority purchases specific occurrence excess insurance from commercial carriers for the 
workers compensation and pooled liability programs.  The coverage for losses above the 
corresponding policy year’s specified self-insured retention (SIR) is limited to that policy year’s 
excess coverage limit. 
 

H. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2013 consisted of cash in the bank of $4,000 and investment in 
CalTRUST Investment Pool of $412,565. The amount in the investment is held by Regional 
Government Services Authority as a fiduciary on behalf of the Authority (See Note 8 – Related Party 
Transactions). 
 
The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash is covered by federal depository insurance up to 
$250,000. Should deposits exceed the insured limits, the balance is covered by collateral held by the 
bank in accordance with California law requiring the depository bank to hold collateral equal to 
110% of the excess government funds on deposit.  This collateral must be in the form of government-
backed securities. 
 
CalTRUST Investment Pool 
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST); a public 
joint powers authority formed to pool and invest the funds of public agencies.  CalTRUST invests in 
fixed- income securities eligible for investment pursuant to California Government Code Sections 
53601 and 53635.  Investment guidelines adopted by the board of Trustees may further restrict the 
types of investments that are held by the Trust.  Leveraging within the Trust’s portfolios is 
prohibited.  The fair value of the Authority’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements at amounts based upon the Authority’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided 
by CalTRUST for the entire CalTRUST portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). 
The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by CalTRUST, 
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
 
Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. The monies held in the CalTRUST investment pool is not subject to 
categorization by risk category.  It is also not rated as to credit risk by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The investment policy of Municipal Services Authority contains no limitations on the amount that 
can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  There 
are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total Authority investments for the 
year ended June 30, 2013. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk  
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party 



MUNICIPAL SERVICES AUTHORITY 
 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

JUNE 30, 2013  
 
 

 14

3. UNPAID CLAIMS LIABILITIES   
 

The following represents changes in claims liabilities for the Authority during the period ended June 
30, 2013: 
 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses at beginning of year -$                   

Incurred claims and claim 
adjustment expenses:

  Provision for insured events of the 
  current year 198,676           

  Increase/(decrease) in provision of
  insured events of prior years -                     

Total incurred claims and claim
adjustment expenses 198,676           

Payments:

  Claim and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to insured events of the 
  current year 1,634              

  Claim and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to insured events of the 
  prior years -                     

Total Payments 1,634              

Total unpaid claims and claims
adjustment expenses 197,042$         

Claims reserves -$                   
Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 197,042           
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) -                     

197,042           
Current portion -                     
Non-current portion 197,042$         
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3. UNPAID CLAIMS LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Emphasis of a Matter 
An actuarial valuation was not completed, which would have provided an estimate of the outstanding 
claim liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013.  Management has elected to use industry exposure 
ratings in estimating the ultimate losses and outstanding liabilities reported in the financial 
statements.  As outlined in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the exposure to the Authority for 
workers’ compensation and general liability claims is $1,000,000 and $50,000 per claim, 
respectively.  Although no workers’ compensation claims have been identified and only one general 
liability claim for $1,634 has been paid, there is the potential that claims can be filed in the future 
that may be applicable to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  Actual claims costs could be 
materially different than the amounts presented in these financial statements. 

 
4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
Regional Government Services Authority (RGSA) is a member of Municipal Services Authority and 
also provides administration for the Authority.  RGSA charges administrative overhead to the 
Authority each month.  The amount charged for the eighteen month period ended June 30, 2013 was 
$45,000. RGSA also holds cash and investments on behalf of the Authority.  At June 30, 2013, the 
amount held on behalf of the Authority was $412,565. 
 

5. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Municipal Services Authority’s management evaluated its June 30, 2013 financial statements for 
subsequent events through February 21, 2014, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued.  Management is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or 
disclosure in the financial statements.  
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Workers'
 Compensation

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses at beginning of year -$                          -$                    -$                   

Incurred claims and claim 
adjustment expenses:

  Provision for insured events of the 
  current year 147,042                  51,634             198,676           

  Increase/(decrease) in provision of
  insured events of prior years -                            -                     -                     

Total incurred claims and claim
adjustment expenses 147,042                  51,634             198,676           

Payments:

  Claim and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to insured events of the 
  current year -                            1,634               1,634              

  Claim and claim adjustment expenses
  attributable to insured events of the 
  prior years -                            -                     -                     

Total Payments -                            1,634               1,634              

Total unpaid claims and claims
adjustment expenses 147,042$                50,000$           197,042$         

Liability Totals
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2013
1. Premiums and investment revenue:

    Earned 926,250$      
    Ceded (50,045)        
    Net earned 876,205        

2. Unallocated expenses 78,375          

3. Estimated incurred claims and
expenses, end of policy year
Incurred 147,042        
Ceded Claims -                  
Net incurred claims 147,042        

4. Paid (cumulative) as of:
  End of policy year  -                  

5. Reestimated ceded claims and
expenses: -                  

6. Reestimated net incurred claims 
and expenses:
  End of policy year  147,042        

7. Increase (decrease) in estimated
incurred claims and expense from 
end of policy year -$                
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2013
1. Premiums and investment revenue:

    Earned 308,750$      
    Ceded (62,256)        
    Net earned 246,494        

2. Unallocated expenses 26,125          

3. Estimated incurred claims and
expenses, end of policy year
Incurred 51,634          
Ceded Claims -                  
Net incurred claims 51,634          

4. Paid (cumulative) as of:
  End of policy year  1,634           

5. Reestimated ceded claims and
expenses: -                  

6. Reestimated net incurred claims 
and expenses:
  End of policy year  51,634          

7. Increase (decrease) in estimated
incurred claims and expense from 
end of policy year -$                
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1. RECONCILIATION OF CLAIMS LIABILITIES BY TYPE OF CONTRACT 
 

The schedule represents the changes in claims liabilities for the past year for the Authority's 
workers’ compensation and liability program. 

 
2. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION 
 

The tables illustrate the Authority's earned revenues (net of reinsurance) and investment income 
compared to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other expenses assumed 
by the Authority as of the end of the year. 

 
The rows of the table are defined as follows:  

 
1.  This line shows the total of each fiscal year's gross earned contribution revenue and 

investment revenue, contribution revenue ceded to reinsurers and net earned contribution 
revenue and reported investment revenue.  

 
2.  This line shows each fiscal year's other operating costs of the Authority including 

overhead and claims expense not allocable to individual claims.   
 

3.  This line shows the Authority's gross incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment 
expense (both paid and accrued), claims assumed by reinsurers and net incurred claims 
and allocated adjustment expenses as originally reported at the end of the first year in 
which the event that triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year). 
The original estimate of ceded claims was not available. 

 
4.  This section shows the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for 

each policy year.  
 

5.  This line shows the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by reinsurers as of the 
end of the current year for each accident year. 

 
6.  This section shows how each policy year’s net incurred claims increased or decreased as 

of the end of successive years. This annual re-estimation results from new information 
received on known claim, reevaluation of existing information on known claims and 
emergence of new claims not previously known.   

 
7. This line compares the latest re-estimated net incurred claims amount to the amount 

originally established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of net claims cost is 
greater or less than originally estimated.  As data for individual policy years mature, the 
correlation between original estimates and re-estimated amounts is commonly used to 
evaluate the accuracy of net incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy 
years.  This is the third year of the presentation and development of this information. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON  
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Board of Directors 
Municipal Services Authority 
Carmel Valley, California 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Municipal Services Authority (the “Authority”), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2013.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Management of Municipal Services Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financials statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.   
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above.  
 

http://www.jpmcpa.com
mailto:dbecker@jpmcpa.com
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipal Services Authority’s financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter dated 
February 21, 2014. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of directors, others 
within the entity, and the California State Controller’s Office and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
February 21, 2014 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL AND REGIONAL GOVERNMENT 
SERVICES AUTHORITIES 

Providing Solutions to California Public Agencies 
 

 
P.O. Box 1350     ·     Carmel Valley, CA  93924     ·     650.587.7300 

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE FC Meeting: 02-27-14 
FROM: RICHARD AVERETT, Executive Director Item: 4B 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. RGSBOD2014-01 LAIF AUTHORIZED 

PERSONS LIST 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Forward Resolution number RGSBOD2014-01 to the Board of Directors approving 
additions to the RGS LAIF Authorized Persons List.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) requires that a resolution be approved by the 
Authority to transact business with LAIF. Each Authority representative delegated to make 
deposits or withdrawal of funds be “authorized by delegation.”  “Authorized by delegation” 
refers to local agency staff delegated responsibility for day-to-day LAIF business by those 
authorized on the resolution on file with LAIF. Delegated individuals may not make changes 
to the LAIF account, but may only request transactions and information. LAIF participants are 
responsible for notifying LAIF immediately in writing whenever there are changes to the 
agency’s LAIF account.  All changes are subject to verification by the State Treasurer’s Office. 
 
Discussion: 
This action will not change Authority representative(s) or their successors authorized by 
resolution to make changes to the Authority’s LAIF account: 

Richard Averett, Executive Director/CFO 
Daniel Schwarz, Board Chair 
 

This action will authorize by delegation the following staff members and the Board Chair or their 
successors the responsibility to conduct day-to-day LAIF business, including transactions and 
requests for information: 

 
Richard Averett, Executive Director – currently authorized 
Jennifer Bower, Director of Human Resources – currently authorized 
Steve Rogers, Board Chair - added 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RGSBOD2014-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES, A JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, 

AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL RGS OFFICER TO INVEST MONIES IN THE LOCAL 
AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) 

 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Chapter 730 of the statutes of 1976 Section 16429.1 was added to the 
California Government Code to create a Local Agency Investment Fund in the State Treasury for 
the deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of investment by the State Treasury; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby find that the deposit and withdrawal of money in the 
Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with the provisions of Section 16429.1 of the 
Government Code for the purpose of investment as stated therein is in the best 
Interests of the Regional Government Services Authority; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following Regional Government Services 
Authority officer, or their successor in office, shall be authorized by resolution to make changes 
to the District’s LAIF account: 
 

Richard Averett, Executive Director 
Steve Rogers, Board Chair 

 
And the following Regional Government Services Authority staff, or their successors, shall be 
authorized by delegation to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the District’s LAIF 
account: 
 

Richard Averett, Executive Director 
Jennifer Bower, Director of Human Resources 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Regional Government at a publicly noticed meeting thereof held on the 
27th day of February, 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  _____________________________________ 
 
NOES: _____________________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: _____________________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED: _____________________________________ 
  Steven Rogers, Chair, Board of Directors 
  Regional Government Services  
 

 



Mail to: 
 
LAIF 
Attn:  Close Account 
P.O. Box 942809 
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA                   Bill Lockyer, Treasurer 

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER                                                                       
P. O. BOX 942809 
SACRAMENTO, CA  94209-0001 
Telephone (916) 653-3001 
 

 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
 

 
 
 
 

       DATE     February 27, 2014 
         

 
Please close the following LAIF account. 
 
 
 

  40 -  27 -  007      $0.00 
 

LAIF ACCOUNT NUMBER    Current Account Balance  

 
 

AGENCY NAME    Local Government Services Authority 
 

  
 

 
 
  

         
SIGNATURE  SIGNATURE 

 Richard Averett       Steven Rogers 
  

PRINT NAME      PRINT NAME 
831-308-1508       707-944-8851 
            

TELEPHONE                TELEPHONE 
 

 
 

 

 

CLOSE ACCOUNT REQUEST 
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